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DESCRIBE THE PRESEN T AND ORIGINAL (if known) P HYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The three remaining original buildings of the John Hopkins Hospital are 
the Administration Building, the Marburg Buildings, and the Wi lmer Build­
ing . Facing on Broadway, these three buildings harmonize with each other, 
and the maior external ornamentation planned by the original designer is 
concentrated here. The designs were drawn by the firm of Cabot and 
ChandlP-r of Boston in the Queen Anne style. The buildings were constructed 
of pressed brick, with ornamentation of dark blue, fine-grained, hard and 
durable Cheat River sandstone from West Virginia , and with ornamentation 
of mo l ded terracotta matchi ng the brick. 

The Administration Building in the center is the largest building and the 
most important architecturally . The four-story building is crowned with 
a large dome with a central spire . The height to the top of the dome is 
150 feet; to the top of the spire, 185 .feet; and·· from the main floor to 
the top of the inner dome , 79 feet 9 inches . The hospital ' s main entrance 
is by porch on the west front, through a vestibule, which opens into a 
central , octagonal-shaped rotunda (34 feet in diameter) extending upward 
from the ground f loor to the glass dome, which has been painted over to 
comply with World War II blackout regulations. In the center of the 
rotunda, facing the door, is a 10 1/2 foot marble statue of Christ the 
Consoler, made in 1896 by Professor Stein of the Danish Royal Academy of 
Arts , and presented to the hospital by William W. Spence . It is a replica 
of an 1820 work by the Danish sculptor Bertel Thorvaldsen. 

Opposite the front entrance to the Administration Building is a large 
double staircas e leading to the three upper floors and to mahogany-trimmed 
balconies around the rotunda. The rotunda opens into the mai n hall, which 
runs nq-r~h and south wi th a vestibule entrance at each end. Great attent­
ion was paid to architectural details of the interior, as shown by the 
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marble floors, oad woodwork , heavily ornamented brass candelabra , decorative z 
moldings and plaster work, numerous marble mantels and carved brass hinges. 
The fir~t floor contains offices, reception rooms , and the original board 
room. The upper floors, previously used partly as physicians ' residences, 
now contain onl y offices. Service facilities are located in the concrete 
and brick basement . 

The two pay wards flank i ng the Administration Building have small domes 
and similar facades but f ew original inter i or furnishings. Each building 
contains a series of rooms on each side of a central corridor running 
north and south, with verandas on each end. At the junction of this 
corridor with ar. east and west cor!'idor is an octagonal hal 1. The interior13 
of the buildings were finished in ash. Today the southern building houses 
clinics of the Wilmer Opthalmolgical Institute. Marbur g, on the north, 
remains in use for private patients. 

All the other original buildings have been replaced through massive con­
struction programs , but the three central buildings have remained as a 
demonstrative part of the hospital's history and a lanJmark of Baltimore 
since 1889. 
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The Johns Hopkins Hospital 

Nwnber 7, Description continued ~ 

The two ~ay wards flanking the Administration Building are today known as 
the Wilmer Opthamological Institute, on the south, and the

1
Marburg Building, 

on the north. They were constructed as a U-shaped unit with the Admin­
istration Building and, indeed, were originally entered only through pas­
sageways connecting with it. (In 1925, a new facade and doorway were added 
to the north side of the Wilmer Building.) Both structures are three stories 
high and have regularly spaced rectangular witidows with curved lintels on 
the first floor. The s~cond and third floor windows are separated by 
brick pilasters. A central b~y projects on the west side of each building, 
facing Broadway. This is topped by a triangular pediment which is decorated 
with a terracotta floral design. Immediately below on the third floor level 
is an ornate arched window . 

The Marburg Building is the more nearly original of the two and retains its 
two-story cast iron porches which project on the north and south facades. 
The mansard roofs of both structures are slightly pitched and are topped 
by an octagonal tower which rises to a pointed spire. 

Inside, each building contains a series of rooms flanking a central cor­
ridor whose axis is north and south . At the jundtion of this corridor with 
an east-west corridor, is an octagonal hall. · The interiors of the buildings 
were finished in ash. 
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Johns Hopkins (1795-1873) was a successful Baltimore merchant and banker I 
who amassed a fortune of approximately seven million dollars . A bachelor, 
he decided to div~de his fortWle after his death between a hospital and a 
university. In 1867 , bills were passed in the Maryl and General Assembly 
to form two corpor ations, "The John Hopkins Hospital" and "The Johns 
Hopkins University;" their charter provided for a close inter-locking 
arrangement between the two. The certificate of incorporation of the 
hospital was signed in August, 1867, and Mr . Hopkins chose 12 men to serve 
on its Board of Trustees, all prominent in the professional, political, 
or business l ife of Bal timore. The first president of the Board was 
Francis T. King (1819-1891), a leader in the dry goods business. John IL 
Garrett (1820-1884) was president of the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad when 
chosen trustee . 

Mr . Hopkins selected a site for the hospital in southeast Baltimore on 
Loudenschlager ' s Hil l , which had been occupied by the Maryland Hospital 
for the Insane since 1797. He bought the land and gave the deed to the 
Trustees in March, 1873; the streets through the site were permanently 
closed:· At this t ime he also gave the t rustees a letter concerning 
the hospital and its duties, with detailed instructions about grading an<l 
preparing the land, building a hospital of the highest charter, and 
maintaining a close relationship with the medical school of t he university . 
To complete the hospital ' s tract of land, Mr. Hopkins agreed to purchase 
the portion on t he western boWldary of the lot owned by the Insane Asylum, 
to provide a frontage on Broadway and form a total lot of 14 1/2 acres; 
this portion pad been occupied by several houses and a small cemetery, 
and was purchased by the Trustees after Mr. Hopkins ' death . 

John Hopk~ns died on December 24 , 1873 at the age of 78. Now the i ncome 
from his estate was avai l able to the Trustees, and they needed to 
determine the best plan of construction to ensure the success of the 
hospital. At that time the relation of bacteria to disease was not 
thoroughly understood; it was widely supposed t hat hospital air spread 
disea'se, so the arrangeme.nt and ventilation of the buildings was of utmost 
importance. The Buil ding Committee of the Board of Trus t ees studied 
the problem and inspected hospitals in other cities. 

(See Continuation Sheet #1) 
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In May, 1874 the Committee appointed John R. N:ernsee as architect. Born in 
Vienna, Niemsee studied engineering and architecture at the University of 
Prague. After coming to the United States he established the firm of N:..ernsee 
and Neilson in Baltimore, which designed several houses on Baltimore?s Mount 
Vernon Place. During the Civil War he was a major of engineers in Deauregard' s 
army. 

In 1875 the Building Committee decided to obtain technical scientific advice 
before choosing a construction plan . King wrote to five distinguished 
physicians who were experts on hospital construction, askin~ for their sug­
gestions, and for their opinions on the relative merits of the"pavilion" 
system (detached, permanent units of two or more stories) and the "barrack" 
system (one-story temporaty structures) . All five replies contained usefui 
points, but that of Dr. John S. Billings was accepted as the best essay. 
Billings was born in Indiana in 1838, and gra.duated from Miami University and 
the Medical College of Ohio . During the Civil War he served with distinction 

-in the Medical Corps of the United States Army . After the war he was assigned 
t o the Office of the Surgeon General in Washington, were he gained a reputatiou 
as an authority on hospital construction and management, as well as hygiene 
and sanitation . He is best known for his compilation of the Index Catalogue 
of the Surgeon General's Library. After retiring from the army he became 
Director of the newly created New York Public Library until his death in 1913 . 

Billings ' essay on the hospital emphasized the connection with the medical 
school and r esearch facilities, and outlin.ed the details of the important 
heating and ventilating facilities . On the r ecommendation of the Building 
Committee} the Board of Trustees employed Billings as a special advisor and 
supervisor ·of hospital construction, starting on July 1, i876. By that time 
the Building Committee and the architect Niernsee had planned to have the 
main building face on Broadway to form the memorial or monument part of the 
complex; the buildings were to be handsome , but not too elaborately ornamented. 
Niernsee returned to South Carolina to complete the State Capitol in November, 
1877 , and was succeeded by the firm of Cabot and Chandler of Boston, who 
prepared the plans for the Adminis trat ion Building and the two private ward 
buildings; thes e are the only original buildings r emaining today. 

In the fall of 1876 Billings went to Europe to study hospital construction 
there; on his return, he advised a plan with a central garden, a series of 
one-story pavilion wards , and two pay wards flanking the Administration Build­
ing . The final complete block plan of the hospital was approved early in 1877. 
Construction was started in June, 1877, but was not completed for 12 years, 
and even then the southern row of wards was .never bui lt. The estate, and the 
yearly return was lower than expected . The construction was supervised first 
by John Marshall, when by William H. Leeks; the gr ounds were laid out and plant 
ed from designs by E. W. Bowditch of Boston . 

(see continuation sheet #2) 
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' 'D1e John Hopkins Hospital 
No. 8 . Significance Continued. 

The Johns . Hopkins Hospital was formally opened on May 7, 1889. It gained 
early recognition through its famous doctors - Welch, Osler, Halsted, and 
Ke.tly. The Administration 8uilding is still the focal point of the hospital , 
its dome often used as a symbol. To the north of the Administration Building 
is the "ward originally used for male paying patients, which now houses all 
private medical and surgical patients. Named the Marburg Building, it is 
funded by the family of Charles L. Marburg (1842-1907), the head of a 
Baltimore tobacco firm. The female pay ward south of the Administration 
Building is now part of the Wilmer Opthalmological Institute , founded in 1925 
by Dr. William Holland Wilmer (1863-1936), who was also the founder and one 
of the original trustees of Baltimore's Roman Catholic Cathedral . 
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